

MINUTES

Ordinary Council Meeting Wednesday, 1 November 2023

Date: Wednesday, 1 November 2023 Time: 6.00pm Location: Council Chambers, 15 Stead Street, Ballan & Online

Order Of Business

1	Opening of Meeting and Prayer4			
2	Acknowledgement of Country4			
3	Recording of Meeting4			
4	Present	4		
5	Apologi	es4		
6	Confirm	ation of Minutes5		
7	Disclosu	re of Conflicts of Interest		
8	Public C	Question Time5		
9	Petition	s6		
10	Present	ations/Deputations6		
11	Chief Ex	ecutive Officer Reports		
	11.1	Audit and Risk Advisory Committee - Independent Chair Full Year Report 2022/23		
	11.2	Crown Land Reserve Peppercorn Lease - Bacchus Marsh Montessori Kindergarten at 176 Gisborne Road, Darley10		
	11.3	Annual Review and Update of the Governance Rules: For Adoption14		
	11.4	Councillor Expenses Policy Update19		
	11.5	Adoption of CCTV Policy23		
12	Community Strengthening Reports27			
	12.1	Community Asset Committees - Reports27		
	12.2	Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025 - Year Two Review29		
	12.3	August 2023 Community Grant Recommendations		
13	Community Assets & Infrastructure Reports41			
	13.1	Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Honour Management Strategy & Preservation Plan41		
	13.2	Moorabool Environment and Sustainability Advisory Committee - Draft Terms of Reference47		
14	Other R	eports		
	Nil			
15	Notices of Motion			
	Nil			
16	Notices	of Rescission		
	Nil			
17	Mayor's Report			
	17.1	Mayor's Report53		

18	Councillors' Reports		
19	Urgent I	Business	. 58
20	Closed Session of the Meeting to the Public		
	20.1	C03-2023/2024 - Hogan Road and Densley Street, Ballan - Upgrade	.61
	20.2	C06 2023/2024 Mill Park Splash Park and Amenities Design & Construct Contract	.61
	20.3	C14 2023/2024 Dunnstown Pavilion and Navigators Community Hub	.61
	20.4	Procurement Australia Contract 2403/0109; Bulk Fuels	.61
	20.5	Contract C11-2022/23; Supply of Emulsion & Bituminous Products	.62
	20.6	Confidential Bacchus Marsh Bowls Club Facility	.62
21	Meeting	g Closure	. 63

1 OPENING OF MEETING AND PRAYER

The Mayor opened the meeting with the Council Prayer at 6.00pm

2 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

I acknowledge the Traditional Owners of the land on which we are meeting. I pay my respects to their Elders, past and present, and the Aboriginal Elders of other communities who may be here today.

3 RECORDING OF MEETING

In accordance with Moorabool Shire Council's Governance Rules, the meeting is livestreamed.

4 PRESENT

Cr Rod Ward, Mayor	East Moorabool Ward
Cr Ally Munari, Deputy Mayor	Woodlands Ward
Cr Moira Berry	East Moorabool Ward
Cr Tonia Dudzik	East Moorabool Ward
Cr Paul Tatchell	Central Moorabool Ward
Cr Tom Sullivan	West Moorabool Ward

Officers:

Mr Derek Madden	Chief Executive Officer
Ms Caroline Buisson	General Manager Customer Care & Advocacy
Mr Phil Jeffrey	General Manager Community Assets & Infrastructure
Ms Leigh McCallum	General Manager Community Strengthening
Mr Henry Bezuidenhout	Executive Manager Community Planning & Development
Ms Celeste Gregory	Executive Manager Democratic Support & Corporate Governance

5 APOLOGIES

Cr David Edwards

East Moorabool Ward

6 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Moira Berry Seconded: Cr Ally Munari

That the minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held on Wednesday 4 October 2023 and the Special Council Meeting held on Wednesday 25 October 2023 be confirmed.

CARRIED

7 DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Nil

8 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

Name	Question/Response	CEO/GM/EM	Read at Meeting (Yes/No)	Taken on Notice Yes/No
Chris Guidotti	 Raw effluent entering the Moorabool River at Hunts Bridge Morrisons. This has been an ongoing issue and with the increase in campers and itinerant persons using the area, the issue has escalated. According to the risk matrix, this would be an extreme health and safety issue. The likelihood for this to continue is high and the outcome of any serious health risk is high. Could Council please advise what will be done to address this issue? 	Henry Bezuidenhout Executive Manager Community Planning & Development		
	Response:Council could not locate any previous queries regarding this matter.Further investigation will be required to confirm the source, extent and risk of the alleged raw effluent entering the Moorabool River at Hunts Bridge, Morrisons.It is furthermore noted that it is Crown land. Council Officers will collaborate with the EPA and relevant water authorities in developing the best approach in responding to the alleged breach of the Environment Protection Act.Council Officers will be in contact with Ms			

Name	Question/Response	CEO/GM/EM	Read at Meeting (Yes/No)	Taken on Notice Yes/No
	Guidotti directly to provide future updates.			
Chris Guidotti	Is there ever a plan to signify our presence with signage that depicts our importance of the shire.	Phil Jeffrey		
	I note there are very large Moorabool town signs, and yet we have been overlooked. We certainly do not want something like Mt Egerton, but we deserve a sign of relevance.	General Manager Community Assets and		
	Was there a consultation with each of the towns to decide on the signage that is currently erected per town? If so, was Elaine included?	Infrastructure		
	Response:			
	The picture frame signs that currently exist in some of the towns in Moorabool were installed over 10 years ago.			
	To inform future entrances to towns within the Shire, we are currently working through an update to the draft Gateway Strategy based on community engagement feedback.			
	Once updated, it is proposed to go through a further engagement process prior being presented to Council for adoption.			
	Following adoption, that will inform the approach to township entrances moving forward			

9 PETITIONS

Nil

10 PRESENTATIONS/DEPUTATIONS

Nil

11 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORTS

11.1 AUDIT AND RISK ADVISORY COMMITTEE - INDEPENDENT CHAIR FULL YEAR REPORT 2022/23

Author: Caroline Buisson, General Manager Customer Care and Advocacy

Authoriser: Derek Madden, Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1. Audit and Risk Advisory Committee - Independent Chair Full Year Report 2022/23 (under separate cover)

PURPOSE

The Audit and Risk Advisory Committee, in alignment with the *Local Government Act 2020* (Act), requires the Chairperson to prepare a report to Council, on the Committee's activities twice per annum.

This report is presented to Council to note the full year report 2022/23 (**Attachment 1**) prepared by the Audit and Risk Advisory Committee's Independent Chair, Ms Linda MacRae.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

- At its meeting of 26 August 2020, Council adopted the Audit and Risk Committee Charter, in accordance with requirements of the *Local Government Act 2020*.
- In accordance with section 54(5) of the *Local Government Act 2020*, and the Audit and Risk Committee Charter, the Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Advisory Committee is required to prepare a biannual report on the activities of the Committee, including its findings and recommendations, and provide a copy of the report for tabling at a Council meeting.
- This is the full year report 2022/23 to be presented to Council. The Committee reviewed the full year report at its meeting held 13 September 2023 and confirmed it is an accurate reflection of the Committee's activities.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Tonia Dudzik Seconded: Cr Moira Berry

That Council notes the Audit and Risk Advisory Committee Independent Chair Report, provided as Attachment 1.

CARRIED

BACKGROUND

At the Ordinary Meeting of Council on 26 August 2020, Council adopted the Audit and Risk Committee Charter, in accordance with the requirements of the *Local Government Act 2020*, and appointed five members to its Audit and Risk Advisory Committee, consisting of three independent members and two Councillors.

Ms Linda MacRae was declared Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Advisory Committee at its meeting on 9 December 2020.

In accordance with section 54(5) of the *Local Government Act 2020,* and the Audit and Risk Committee Charter, the Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Advisory Committee is required to prepare an annual report on the activities of the Committee, including its findings and recommendations, and provide a copy of the report for tabling at a Council meeting.

The Committee has agreed that a report on activities will be prepared for the period 1 July to 31 December and a full year report will be prepared to outline how the Committee has discharged its responsibilities outlined in the Audit and Risk Committee Charter.

PROPOSAL

This report seeks Council to note the Audit and Risk Advisory Committee Chairperson's Report, which has been prepared in accordance with the Act, and the Committee's Charter.

This is the full year report 2022/23 to be presented to Council. The Committee reviewed the half yearly report at its meeting held 8 February 2023 and confirmed it is an accurate reflection of the Committee's activities.

COUNCIL PLAN

The Council Plan 2021-2025 provides as follows:

Strategic Objective3: A Council that listens and adapts to the needs of our evolving
communitiesPriority3.4: Measure performance, communicate our results and continue to
improve our services every day

The proposal to note the Audit and Risk Advisory Committee Chairperson's Report is consistent with the Council Plan 2021 – 2025.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications associated with noting the Audit and Risk Advisory Committee Chairperson's Annual Report.

Risk Identifier	Detail of Risk	Risk Rating	Control/s
Reputational Risk	Not upholding good governance in Council processes. Non-compliance with the requirements relating to Audit and Risk Committees under the Local Government Act 2020.	Medium	Noting the Chairperson's Report, provided in accordance with the <i>Local</i> <i>Government Act 2020</i> and the Audit and Risk Committee Charter. Ongoing adherence to the requirements of the Act and the Charter.

RISK & OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY ISSUES

COMMUNICATIONS & CONSULTATION STRATEGY

Level of Engagement	Stakeholder	Activities	Location	Date	Outcome
Presentation	Audit and Risk Advisory Committee Members	Report presented to the Special Audit and Risk Advisory Committee	Darley Civic Hub and Online	13 September 2023	Confirmed accurate report of Committee's activities
Briefing	Councillors	Chairperson presenting report at Councillor Briefing	Council Chambers, Ballan and Online	27 September 2023	Confirmation by Council

VICTORIAN CHARTER OF HUMAN RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES ACT 2006

In developing this report to Council, the officer considered whether the subject matter raised any human rights issues. In particular, whether the scope of any human right established by the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities is in any way limited, restricted, or interfered with by the recommendations contained in the report. It is considered that the subject matter does not raise any human rights issues.

OFFICER'S DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

Under section 130 of the *Local Government Act 2020*, officers providing advice to Council must disclose any interests, including the type of interest.

Chief Executive Officer – Derek Madden

In providing this advice to Council as the Chief Executive Officer, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

Author – Caroline Buisson

In providing this advice to Council as the Author, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

CONCLUSION

It is proposed that the Audit and Risk Advisory Committee Chairperson's Report (Attachment 1) meets the requirements of s.54 of *The Local Government Act 2020,* and is in accordance with the Committee's Charter, and therefore is recommended for noting by Council.

- 11.2 CROWN LAND RESERVE PEPPERCORN LEASE BACCHUS MARSH MONTESSORI KINDERGARTEN AT 176 GISBORNE ROAD, DARLEY
- Author: Kate Pryor, Governance Officer
- Authoriser: Celeste Gregory, Executive Manager Democratic Support & Corporate Governance
- Attachments: Nil

PURPOSE

This report seeks Council's approval to surrender the current 5 year lease with Uniting Victoria Tasmania Limited and re-enter into a 20-year peppercorn lease with Uniting Victoria Tasmania Limited of the Crown Reserve at 176 Gisborne Road, Darley (Bacchus Marsh Montessori Kindergarten) under delegated authority pursuant to section 17D of the *Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978.*

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Moorabool Shire Council under s14 of the *Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978* (the Act) is the appointed Committee of Management of the Crown Land Reserve at 176 Gisborne Road, Darley. The site is occupied by Uniting Victoria Tasmania Limited (Uniting) who operate the Bacchus Marsh Montessori Kindergarten.

Earlier this year Council under the CEO's delegation entered into a new lease pursuant to s17D of the Act with Uniting for a 5-year term (the ground lease) with no option for renewal.

The Victorian School Building Authority (VSBA), who have responsibility for the Victorian Kindergarten and Schools rebuilding program, recently commenced building works for the Bacchus Marsh Montessori Kindergarten Modular Project.

The VSBA intend to lease the buildings to Uniting under a separate 20-year peppercorn lease and are seeking Council to amend the ground lease to the same terms to ensure the buildings will be utilised as a kindergarten for their intended lifespan.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Moira Berry Seconded: Cr Tonia Dudzik

That Council authorises the CEO to:

- 1. Enter into a Deed of Surrender with Uniting Victoria Tasmania Limited to terminate the current 5-year lease agreement pursuant to delegated authority under section 17D of the *Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978;* and
- 2. Enter into a new lease with Uniting Victoria Tasmania Limited for the land known as 176 Gisborne Road, Darley, pursuant to delegated authority under section 17D of the *Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978:*
 - (a) for an annual rent of \$1 per annum (on demand)
 - (b) for a total period of 20 years
 - (c) with periodic reviews after 10 years and 15 years

BACKGROUND

Moorabool Shire Council under s14 of the *Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978* (the Act) is the appointed Committee of Management of the Crown Land Reserve at 176 Gisborne Road, Darley. The site is occupied by Uniting Victoria Tasmania Limited (Uniting) who operate the Bacchus Marsh Montessori Kindergarten.

The site was historically vacant. Since approximately 2000, the site has been leased to Uniting for a peppercorn rent for the provision of kindergarten services.

Earlier this year Council under the CEO's delegation entered into a new lease pursuant to s17D of the Act with Uniting for a 5-year term (the ground lease) with no option for renewal.

The Victorian School Building Authority (VSBA), who have responsibility for the Victorian Kindergarten and Schools rebuilding program, recently commenced building works for the Bacchus Marsh Montessori Kindergarten Modular Project.

The VSBA intend to lease the buildings to Uniting under a separate 20-year peppercorn lease and are seeking Council to amend the ground lease to the same terms to ensure the buildings will be utilised as a kindergarten for their intended lifespan.



Figure 1 - Site Plan

PROPOSAL

It is proposed that Council:

- Surrender the current 5 year lease, and
- Enter into a new lease for a term of 20 years for \$1 per annum (on request).

COUNCIL PLAN

The Council Plan 2021-2025 provides as follows:

Strategic Objective 2: Liveable and thriving environments

Priority 1.4: Develop a vision and provide opportunities for rural communities

The proposal to lease the Crown reserve at 176 Gisborne Road, Darley to Uniting for the purposes of operating the Bacchus Marsh Montessori Kindergarten is consistent with the Council Plan 2021-2025.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Council has been leasing the reserve to Uniting for a peppercorn rent since approximately 2000 and is estimated to save Council between \$250,000-\$350,000 or more per annum as Council do not assume the costs of operating the kindergarten. This is an estimated saving of \$5.7M to \$8.5M over the last 23 years.

The site has been reserved for educational purposes, which restricts its use.

Additionally, in accordance with the Municipal Association of Victoria partnership agreement with the Department of Education, as well as Council's Municipal Early Years Plan, Council is required to provide kindergarten infrastructure (land and buildings) to early childhood educators at the lowest possible cost.

RISK & OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY ISSUES

The VSBA have indicated that should a longer ground lease not be offered to Uniting, they intend to remove the buildings from the site on termination of the 5-year lease.

Risk Identifier	Detail of Risk	Risk Rating	Control/s
Legal action	Potential for legal dispute over building ownership	Medium	Maintain an amicable relationship with the VSBA
Kindergarten services failing to meet demand	Lack of kindergarten placements due to lack of infrastructure (i.e. if removed by VSBA)	Medium	and Uniting. Remain open to negotiation in regard to building and land governance.

COMMUNICATIONS & CONSULTATION STRATEGY

No public consultation strategy is required at this time.

VICTORIAN CHARTER OF HUMAN RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES ACT 2006

In developing this report to Council, the officer considered whether the subject matter raised any human rights issues. In particular, whether the scope of any human right established by the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities is in any way limited, restricted or interfered with by the recommendations contained in the report. It is considered that the subject matter does not raise any human rights issues.

OFFICER'S DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

Under section 130 of the *Local Government Act 2020*, officers providing advice to Council must disclose any interests, including the type of interest.

Executive Manager – Celeste Gregory

In providing this advice to Council as the Executive Manager, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

Author – Kate Pryor

In providing this advice to Council as the Author, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

CONCLUSION

The VSBA are in the process of finalising their building lease and are seeking Council to amend the ground lease to match their 20-year term on a peppercorn rent.

As the lease cannot be amended and must be surrendered to enable a new term to be agreed, this report seeks Council's approval to surrender the 5 year lease and enter into a 20 year lease with Uniting under section 17D of the *Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978* pursuant to delegated authority.

11.3	ANNUAL REVIEW AND UPDATE OF THE GOVERNANCE RULES: FOR ADOPTION
------	--

Author: Celeste Gregory, Exe Governance		te Gregory, Executive Manager - Democratic Support & Corporate rnance
Authoriser:	Derel	Madden, Chief Executive Officer
Attachments:	1.	Governance Rules 2023 (under separate cover)

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is present the Governance Rules for adoption following the community consultation process in line with Council's Community Engagement Policy.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Council Officers undertook a comprehensive and holistic review and update of the Governance Rules. While minor administrative corrections have been made over the last 12 months, a thorough review of the rules had not been undertaken since adoption in 2020.

The review identified the following opportunities for improvement:

- Rule numbering, formatting, automated cross-referencing and numbering functions.
- Realignment of some procedures with current effective practices.
- Consistent public participation timeframes.
- Additional petition rules to make communication with petitioners easier.
- Allowing full participation of Councillors at meetings within a hybrid working environment.

As resolved at the Ordinary Meeting of Council on 6 September 2023, the draft Governance Rules were published for community consultation in accordance with Council's Community Engagement Policy for four (4) weeks from 7 September to 5 October 2023.

Consultation was conducted utilising the following forums:

- Council's Have Your Say Website
- Notice in the Moorabool News

Council received no submissions from the community during the consultation period.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Tonia Dudzik Seconded: Cr Tom Sullivan

That Council adopts the Governance Rules.

CARRIED

BACKGROUND

Council Officers undertook a comprehensive and holistic review and update of the Governance Rules. While minor administrative corrections have been made over the last 12 months, a thorough review of the rules had not been undertaken since adoption in 2020.

The review identified the following opportunities for improvement:

- Rule numbering, formatting, automated cross-referencing and numbering functions.
- Realignment of some procedures with current effective practices.
- Consistent public participation timeframes.
- Additional petition rules to make communication with petitioners easier.
- Allowing full participation of Councillors at meetings within a hybrid working environment.

Key changes are highlighted in yellow (where possible) in the attachment, and include:

Change	Reasoning
Improvements to the overall structure and readability of the document and change to from multi-layered legal numbering to simplistic numbering.	The legal-style numbering of the rules led to the document being difficult to read and cross-reference. Several additions to the document resulted in multi- level paragraph numbering presenting up to 10 layers, which is inconsistent with the adopted Corporate Writing Style Guide and Accessibility Guidelines from Vision Australia. Reformatting the number had resulted in a much easier and more accessible document.
Update to the document design, layout, logo and colour scheme.	Updated in line with the adopted Brand Strategy and Corporate Brand Style Guidelines.
Automated numbering and cross- referencing.	The legal-style numbering of the rules made creation of links, automatic updates and cross-referencing not being optimised due to manually typed numbers. This was leading to potential errors when updating the document as each cross-reference and paragraph number had to be manually corrected whenever a change was introduced. This enhancement ensures future updates minimise
	the potential for errors in the numbering or structure of the document and will ensure all numbering and cross-references are automatically updated for consistency.
Clarification of Mayor election procedures (previously adopted).	An enhancement was made to the section for the election of the Mayor. This has resulted in a clearer procedure when an equal number of Councillors are in attendance, multiple Councillors are nominated and multiple nominees receive an equal amount of the lowest vote.
Procedural Motions Table moved to the Appendices.	To assist with understanding the Procedural Motions Table it has been added as an Appendix to the document rather than in the middle of the text of the

Change	Reasoning
	document. Moving it to an appendix increases the readability of the document and cross-references have been added in the appropriate sections to the appendices.
Changes to public question time procedure. Current rule: Persons submitting questions must either be available through the virtual meeting platform or be present in the public gallery. If they are not present in the Gallery or through virtual attendance, the question will be held over to the next meeting only. The Chief Executive Officer will read out each question and the Chairperson shall	Processes which changed during restrictions imposed as part of the State of Emergency were not updated into the Governance Rules. As these changes proved effective this enhancement brings the rule in line with current practice. Presently, public questions are read whether the person is in attendance or not. Additionally, the Chair nominates which Officer will ask and answer the question and is not consistently performed by the CEO. This change provides the Chair with flexibility to decide whether or not questions will be read, and flexibility to refer questions to the appropriate officers.
 decide who will answer each question. New rule: Persons submitting questions should either be available through the virtual meeting platform or be present in the public Gallery. If they are not present in the Gallery or through virtual attendance, the Chairperson shall decide if the question will be read in their absence or held over to the next meeting. If the Chairperson decides that the question will be held over, it shall be held over to the next meeting only. The Chairperson shall decide and nominate who will read out each question and who will answer each 	
question. Requirement for petitions and joint letters to include a head petitioner or representative.	In some instances, Council Officers were unable to respond to petitioners as there was no Head Petitioner included on the form. This made it difficult to update those involved as to the status of the petition. To improve this process, Officers have updated the rule to include contact information of a head petitioner so they may consult with them regarding the petition. This enables Officers to gather more information about the contents of the petition before bringing a report

Change	Reasoning
	back to Council for consideration.
	This also allows Officers to communicate with a single point of contact and address the petition in a timely manner.
Changes to how Councillors who wish to attend a meeting via electronic means for any reason. This rule has been changed to "Councillors… <i>may</i> notify the Chief Executive Officer. The notification <i>can be</i> made verbally or in writing. The notification <i>should</i> be received no later than 1 hour prior to the meeting".	All meetings include the operation of Zoom to allow public and Councillor participation by electronic means. While it is a courtesy and encouraged, it is not a requirement to notify Officers of virtual attendance as this does not impact the effective operation of the meeting.
Removal of a part of rule 3.5.3: A Council may determine certain meetings that must be held solely as face-to-face (in-person) meetings. The meetings determined by Council as being solely in person meetings are, for example The Statutory and Annual Appointments meeting and any other meeting determined by Resolution of Council.	The removal of this portion of rule 3.5.3 enables consistency with the Governance Rules relating to the hybrid nature of Council meetings in accordance with rules 3.3.1 and 3.3.2.

PROPOSAL

It is proposed that Council adopts the updated Governance Rules.

COUNCIL PLAN

The Council Plan 2021-2025 provides as follows:

Strategic Objective 3: A Council that listens and adapts to the needs of our evolving communities

Priority 3.4: Measure performance, communicate our results and continue to improve our services every day

The proposal to adopt the updated Governance Rules is consistent with the Council Plan 2021-2025.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications associated with the recommendations in this report.

RISK & OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY ISSUES

There are no risk or occupational health and safety issues associated with the recommendation within this report.

COMMUNICATIONS & CONSULTATION STRATEGY

The draft Governance Rules were published for community consultation on 7 September 2023 for a period of four (4) weeks concluding 5 October 2023. Consultation was conducted utilising the following forums:

- Council's Have Your Say Website
- Notice in the Moorabool News

Council received no submissions from the community during the consultation period.

VICTORIAN CHARTER OF HUMAN RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES ACT 2006

In developing this report to Council, the officer considered whether the subject matter raised any human rights issues. In particular, whether the scope of any human right established by the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities is in any way limited, restricted or interfered with by the recommendations contained in the report. It is considered that the subject matter does not raise any human rights issues.

OFFICER'S DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

Under section 130 of the *Local Government Act 2020*, officers providing advice to Council must disclose any interests, including the type of interest.

Chief Executive Officer – Derek Madden

In providing this advice to Council as the Chief Executive Officer, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

Author – Celeste Gregory

In providing this advice to Council as the Author, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

CONCLUSION

Following from the community consultation process, it is recommended that the updated Governance Rules are adopted by Council.

11.4 COUNCILLOR EXPENSES POLICY UPDATE

Author:	Celeste Gregory, Executive Manager - Democratic Support & Corporate Governance
Authoriser:	Derek Madden, Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1. Councillor Expenses Policy (under separate cover)

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to seek adoption of the changes made to the Councillor Expenses Policy as a result of an internal audit reviewing statutory compliance.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

- Updates to the Councillor Expenses Policy have been made as a result of an internal audit review of the processes and key controls associated with Council capturing and disclosing Councillor expenses completely and accurately.
- The audit noted three findings relating to:
 - Inaccurate disclosure of Council expenses for 21/22 financial year.
 - Lack of a formalised approval process for expenses greater than \$500.
 - Failure to include s 42(a) of the Local Government Act (2020) for consideration of disability requirements.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Tom Sullivan Seconded: Cr Paul Tatchell

That Council adopts the changes made to the Councillor Expenses Policy to align with statutory requirements.

CARRIED

BACKGROUND

Council expense entitlements are outlined and required to be monitored as per section 40-42 Local Government Act 2020. Council's internal auditors conducted a review of Councillor Expenses processes and key controls with the final report issued April 2023.

The report noted three findings with an overall risk of medium associated with:

- Policy and procedures being established and adhered to across Council.
- Monitoring and reporting activities are in place to accurately track and report on expenses.

Audit Findings

1. The disclosed reporting of Council Expenses for the 2021-2022 financial year did not accurately record all expenses in accordance with section 40-42 of the Local Government Act (2020) including the use of the Mayor's fleet vehicle, training conference and memberships.

- 2. The Councillor Expenses Policy does not capture a formalised approval process for expenses greater than \$500.
- 3. Failure to include section 42(a) of the Local Government Act (2020) for the consideration of support that may be required by a Mayor, Deputy Mayor or Councillor because of disability.

PROPOSAL

The following changes/inclusions have been made to the Councillor Expenses Policy:

Finding / Opportunity for Improvement	Action	Change in Policy
 Annual Disclosure of Councillor Expenses Assessment of Councillor expenses over the 2021-2022 financial year identified a number of expenses that were not disclosed as required by section 40-42 of the Local Government Act (2020). Additionally, how expenses are to be calculated regarding the provision of a Council fleet vehicle to the Mayor has not been determined. 	 a) Ensure all councillor expenses including those paid for by Council are captured within annual reporting. b) Determine a methodology for calculating the fleet vehicle use by the Mayor. This should be captured within the Councillor expenses policy and may need to consider: Value of the vehicle Total use Council / personal use percentage On costs such as fuel, registration and maintenance 	 a) Section 8 Reporting Councillor expenses subject to S40, S41 and S42 of the Local Government Act 2020 will be reported in the annual Performance Statement and Annual Report. This will include: Carer and dependent expenses Attendance at meetings and /or conferences and functions Travel Professional development, training and memberships Stationery, consumables and minor equipment Cultural, arts and charitable events b) Section 5.3 Travel Expenses For the purposes of annual reporting, the usage of a Council vehicle will be calculated based on the kilometres travelled within the reporting period and the rate applied by the manufacture for fuel using the following: Value of the vehicle Total use Council/personal use percentage

		• On costs such as fuel, registration and maintenance.
 2. Approval of Councillor Expenses There is a lack of formal approval processes regarding Councillor expenses that are paid for by Council on behalf of Councillors. While we recognise that more formal approval is sought for expenses over \$500, this is not captured within the Councillor Expense Policy. For context, where a reimbursement is required, a reimbursement form is completed and signed off by the CEO, however as all the Councillor expenses incurred for the period assessed were paid for by Council this process did not apply. 	The Councillor Expenses Policy will be reviewed and updated to include the approval process for those expenses which may require threshold limits and require Chief Executive Officer review and approval prior to reimbursement to Councillors.	Section 6. Approval of Expenses The CEO will review expenses to ensure they are within reason- able limits for each type of expense. In doing so, this reduces the risk claims are outside of tolerances expected for and would be considered reasonable. Expenses which may be unreasonable will be discussed with the Councillor.
 3. LGA 2020 Policy Requirements The Councillor Expenses Policy does not fully align to all requirements outlined within the Local Government Act 2020. Specifically, requirements under sections 42 (a) Consider the support that may be required by a Mayor, Deputy Mayor or Councillor because of a disability, have not been addressed. 	The Councillor Expenses Policy will be updated to include the requirements of Section 42 (a) of the Local Government Act to consider the support that may be required by a Mayor, Deputy Mayor or Councillor because of a disability.	Section 5. Policy In respect to the Mayor, Deputy Mayor (if elected) and Councillors, Council will make available reasonable resources and facilities reasonably necessary to enable them to effectively perform their role. Council will in accordance with the Act S42(2(a) consider the support which may be required because of a disability.
 4. Mayoral Approval to attend Cultural, Arts & Charitable Events. Councillors are encouraged to actively support local cultural, arts and charitable events. The Mayor will determine the appropriateness of attendance. The cost of the tickets (at the publicly advertised price) will be treated as a reimbursable and reportable Councillor expense. 	Removal of the sentence "The Mayor will determine the appropriateness of attendance."	5.6 Cultural, Arts and Charitable Events. Councillors are encouraged to actively support local cultural, arts and charitable events. The cost of the tickets (at the publicly advertised price) will be treated as a reimbursable and reportable Councillor expense.

COUNCIL PLAN

The Council Plan 2021-2025 provides as follows:

Strategic Objective 3: A Council that listens and adapts to the needs of our evolving communities

Priority 3.4: Measure performance, communicate our results and continue to improve our services every day

The proposal Councillor Expenses Policy update is consistent with the Council Plan 2021-2025.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

No financial implications.

RISK & OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY ISSUES

Failure to update the Councillor Expenses Policy may result in inaccurate disclosure of Council expenses and breach the Local Government Act (2020).

COMMUNICATIONS & CONSULTATION STRATEGY

Updates to the Councillor Expenses Policy are statutory in nature as a result of the audit and therefore consultation is not required.

VICTORIAN CHARTER OF HUMAN RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES ACT 2006

In developing this report to Council, the officer considered whether the subject matter raised any human rights issues. In particular, whether the scope of any human right established by the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities is in any way limited, restricted or interfered with by the recommendations contained in the report. It is considered that the subject matter does not raise any human rights issues.

OFFICER'S DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

Under section 130 of the *Local Government Act 2020*, officers providing advice to Council must disclose any interests, including the type of interest.

Chief Executive Officer – Derek Madden

In providing this advice to Council as the Chief Executive Officer, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

Author – Celeste Gregory

In providing this advice to Council as the Author, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

CONCLUSION

The changes to the Councillor Expenses Policy will ensure complete and accurate disclosure of expenses and administered in accordance with legislative requirements.

11.5 ADOPTION OF CCTV POLICY

Author: Angela Menzies, Governance Officer

- Authoriser: Celeste Gregory, Executive Manager Democratic Support & Corporate Governance
- Attachments: 1. CCTV Policy (under separate cover)
 - 2. Community Feedback CCTV Policy (under separate cover)

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) Policy is to provide a framework under which Moorabool Shire Council can utilise CCTV systems for various purposes including but not limited to community safety, asset security and monitoring of illegal dumping.

The Draft CCTV Policy was approved at the 2 August 2023 Ordinary Meeting of Council to progress to a four-week consultation period, between 10 August 2023 and 7 September 2023.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

- The Draft CCTV Policy (Attachment 1) was made publicly available through Moorabool's Have Your Say digital platform.
- Community consultation was made available between 10 August 2023 and 7 September 2023 for which comment on the draft policy was invited.
- Six (6) submissions were received via the Have Your Say platform, with five (5) submissions received from within the Shire and one of unknown location.
- A summary of the submissions is detailed in Attachment 2.
- The submissions received highlighted broad support for the policy, with some concerns raised regarding privacy of the community. There were also several requests for CCTV systems be implemented at specific locations.
- Feedback received from the submissions will be incorporated, where appropriate, into procedures that will be created to compliment the policy once adopted.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Tonia Dudzik Seconded: Cr Ally Munari

That Council adopts the CCTV Policy.

CARRIED

BACKGROUND

Moorabool Shire Council does not currently have an adopted policy on implementing CCTV systems in public or Shire spaces. The policy will provide a broad framework under which a set of purpose-specific procedures will be developed to allow Council to implement systems for varied purposes. This may include, but is not limited to, CCTV systems in public spaces such as recreation

reserves to deter and monitor anti-social behaviour, providing an additional layer of security on Council assets such as buildings, as well as the use of mobile and/or temporary systems to monitor illegal behaviour such as waste dumping. The development of procedures will take place postadoption.

Community feedback received for the Draft CCTV Policy broadly supported the policy, as provided in Attachment 2.

PROPOSAL

Six (6) submissions to the Draft CCTV Policy were received through the Have your Say platform throughout the four-week consultation period. A summary of such is provided below:

Submission 1

This submission supported public CCTV due to an increase in violence, robberies and graffiti.

Officer's Response: The implementation of a CCTV system in a public area is supported by this policy and the particular details of how such implementation is to occur will be detailed in a procedure to be developed post policy adoption.

Submission 2

This submission did not agree with Council utilising CCTV in any public spaces, with concerns around privacy and the potential for facial recognition cameras to be used. There were also concerns around the legality of implementing such systems and Council's ownership status of the land on which systems would be installed.

Officer's Response: Maintaining the privacy of community members is extremely important and is embedded throughout the policy. Sections 5.2 Location of Cameras, Section 5.4 Collection and Storage of Data and 5.5 Access to Use Footage relate directly to how Council will ensure the privacy of individuals when using CCTV systems. All relevant regulations and legislation must be followed, including but not limited to the *Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014*.

The scope of the policy addresses where CCTV cameras may be implemented, including areas owned, managed or controlled by Council and further defines public spaces where systems may be present as reserves, roads, buildings and footpaths. Council will not implement a system where it does not have ownership, management or control of the land on which the system is to be placed.

Council does not have any plans to implement CCTV systems that utilise facial recognition technology.

Submission 3

This submission supported the use of CCTV, siting an increase in violence within the Shire. It was noted that appropriate legislation requirements must be followed and that at lease two people should be present when footage is being reviewed to prevent tampering with footage, as well as a register to log access to footage.

Officer's Response: Legislative requirements were assessed when the policy was being developed and a requirement to adhere to legislation is addressed in Section 5.4 Collection and Storage of Data in the policy. The requirement for two people to be present when accessing footage, where appropriate and feasible, is not part of the current policy but will be incorporated into procedures to be developed post policy adoption. Similarly, an access log provides good governance around footage access management and will be incorporated into procedures.

Submission 4

This submission highlighted support for CCTV to be placed on Council assets, including Council Depots.

Officer's Response: This policy supports the use of CCTV systems within non-public areas such as Council Depots. This anonymous submission has also been passed on to the Operations team for their consideration of security at Council Depots.

Submission 5

This submission suggested that Council should consider the use of Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) cameras when implementing CCTV systems at entrance locations to Hopetoun Park and other strategic locations such as entry and exit points from the Western freeway, Gisborne Road in Darley and Bacchus Marsh-Geelong Road in Maddingley for crime prevention and detection.

Officer's Response: The use of CCTV systems at entry and exit points of towns has been discussed with Victoria Police. Implementation of such systems would require the establishment of a Memorandum of Understanding between Council and Victoria Police. The policy allows for such an agreement to take place.

Submission 6

This submission supported Council utilising CCTV to stop vandalism, graffiti and acts of violence around parks, including Rotary Park.

Officer's Response: The possibility of installing CCTV systems within recreation reserves has been explored and Council will work with Victoria Police to identify public areas where implementation of a system would support public safety. Victoria Police have indicated that Rotary Park is one such area that would benefit from such a system being installed. The implementation of such a system would require a Memorandum of Understanding between Council and Victoria Police, which this policy allows for.

COUNCIL PLAN

The Council Plan 2021-2025 provides as follows:

Strategic Objective 3: A Council that listens and adapts to the needs of our evolving communities

Priority 3.1: Listen, analyse and understand community needs

The proposal to adopt the CCTV Policy is consistent with the Council Plan 2021-2025.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications associated with adoption of the CCTV Policy.

Risk Identifier	Detail of Risk	Risk Rating	Control/s
CCTV Policy is not adopted	Council does not have appropriate levels of governance around service unit implementation of a CCTV system, compliance	Medium	The CCTV Policy ensures that all systems will have oversight from the Executive Group at the approval stage and from

RISK & OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY ISSUES

with legislation, e.g.	the Governance team at
Privacy & Data Protection	the implementation stage.
<i>Act 2014,</i> may be	
compromised.	

COMMUNICATIONS & CONSULTATION STRATEGY

Level of Engagement	Stakeholder	Activities	Location	Date	Outcome
Consult	Community	Consultation through Have Your Say platform	Online	10 August 2023 – 7 September 2023	Six submissions received

VICTORIAN CHARTER OF HUMAN RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES ACT 2006

In developing this report to Council, the officer considered whether the subject matter raised any human rights issues. In particular, whether the scope of any human right established by the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities is in any way limited, restricted or interfered with by the recommendations contained in the report. It is considered that the subject matter does not raise any human rights issues.

OFFICER'S DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

Under section 130 of the *Local Government Act 2020*, officers providing advice to Council must disclose any interests, including the type of interest.

Executive Manager – Celeste Gregory

In providing this advice to Council as the General Manager, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

Author – Angela Menzies

In providing this advice to Council as the Author, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

CONCLUSION

The CCTV Policy provides a framework within which officers can assess the suitability of proposals to install, maintain and cease use of CCTV systems on Council assets and in public spaces. The feedback received from community members through the Have Your Say platform has been considered and will primarily be incorporated into the development of a set of post-adoption procedures specific to each requirement. The policy's adoption is recommended, as it is essential for the sound guiding of decisions made around CCTV use within the Shire that affect the community and MSC staff.

12 COMMUNITY STRENGTHENING REPORTS

12.1 COMMUNITY ASSET COMMITTEES - REPORTS

Author: Kaylene Bowker, Executive Assistant

Authoriser: Leigh McCallum, General Manager Community Strengthening

- 1. Minutes Bacchus Marsh Public Hall CAC 27 March 2023 (under separate cover)
 - 2. Minutes Bacchus Marsh Public Hall CAC 22 May 2023 (under separate cover)
 - 3. Minutes Blacksmith's Cottage & Forge CAC 18 April 2023 (under separate cover)
 - 4. Minutes Elaine Recreation Reserve CAC 24 April 2023 (under separate cover)
 - 5. Minutes Greendale CAC 19 April 2023 (under separate cover)
 - 6. Minutes Greendale CAC 17 May 2023 (under separate cover)
 - 7. Minutes Millbrook Community Centre CAC 16 May 2023 (under separate cover)

PURPOSE

Attachments:

Community Asset Committees are established by Council under section 65 of the *Local Government Act 2020* to manage and maintain Community Assets within the municipal district. By Instrument of Delegation, Council may delegate to the committees such functions and powers of the Council that it deems appropriate, utilising provisions of the *Local Government Act 2020*. The Council cannot delegate those powers identified in section 11(2) of the *Local Government Act 2020*.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The following Community Asset Committees present the following reports of the Committee Meetings for Council consideration.

Committee	Meeting Date
Bacchus Marsh Public Hall Community Asset Committee	27 March 2023, 22 May 2023
Blacksmith's Cottage & Forge Community Asset Committee	18 April 2023
Elaine Recreation Reserve Community Asset Committee	24 April 2023
Greendale Community Asset Committee	19 April 2023, 17 May 2023
Millbrook Community Centre Community Asset Committee	16 May 2023

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Ally Munari Seconded: Cr Tonia Dudzik

That Council receive the following Community Asset Committee Minutes:

- 1. Bacchus Marsh Public Hall CAC Minutes for 27 March 2023 and 22 May 2023.
- 2. Blacksmith's Cottage & Forge CAC Minutes for 18 April 2023.
- 3. Elaine Recreation Reserve CAC Minutes for 24 April 2023.
- 4. Greendale CAC Minutes for 19 April 2023 and 17 May 2023.
- 5. Millbrook Community Centre CAC Minutes for 16 May 2023.

CARRIED

12.2 HEALTH AND WELLBEING PLAN 2021-2025 - YEAR TWO REVIEW

Author:	Nichole Knight, Health Promotion and Gender Equality Officer	
Authoriser:	Leigh McCallum, General Manager Community Strengthening	
Attachments:	1.	Attachment 1 - Health and Wellbeing Plan Year 2 Actions Report (under separate cover)

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with an overview of action progress for the second year of the Moorabool Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

- The Moorabool Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025 included a total of 80 actions for completion in the second year. Three additional actions were included as roll over actions from year one.
- Of these actions, 81 have been completed, and two actions have not yet commenced and are recommended to be carried forward to year three.
- The review of actions completed was undertaken through evaluation of the action plan, an analysis of the Department of Health's annual review guidelines and a review of Council's Health and Wellbeing Committee meetings.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Tonia Dudzik Seconded: Cr Moira Berry

That Council adopts the Year Two progress report for the Moorabool Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025, inclusive of the attached Year Two action summary.

CARRIED

BACKGROUND

The Moorabool Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025 was adopted by Council at the Special Meeting of Council on 27 October 2021. The Moorabool Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025 is a four-year plan aimed at enhancing the health and wellbeing of Moorabool communities. The plan captures the health and wellbeing status of our communities and presents a plan in partnership with local health providers and community organisations.

The Victorian Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008 requires that Council conduct an annual review of the Municipal Public Health Plan, which is the Moorabool Health and Wellbeing Plan (MHWP) 2021-2025. This process ensures that actions identified in the plan are being implemented satisfactorily and remain the best way for Council to invest in health and wellbeing over the life of the plan. The process also requires a review of the measures Council has implemented to prevent family violence and respond to the needs of victims of family violence in the community.

The review and development of this report was undertaken through the following:

- Review of Council's Health and Wellbeing Committee meetings for the past 12 months;
- Review of the first-year action plan; and
- Analysis of the Department of Health annual review guidelines.

The outcomes of the second year of the 2021-2025 HWB Plan are as follows:

Total Year Two Actions	80
Year two actions completed	78
Total Year one rollover actions completed	3
Actions not started from year two to be carried over to year three	2

A full overview of the status of year two actions is included as Attachment 1 - Health and Wellbeing Plan Year Two Actions Report. Acronyms are used in the attachment to identify themes in the Health and Wellbeing Plan for each action: Being active (BA), Food we eat (F), Keeping ourselves safe (KS), Liveability (L), Mental health (MH), Reducing harmful addictions (HA).

The following is an overview of some key highlights achieved in each of the themes.

- In the "Being Active" theme, the Bacchus Marsh Leisure Centre has provided additional sessions for older people and young people. Seniors' classes have increased from 2 to 4 sessions per week in response to community interest and group capacity. Youth Services implemented a gym program at the Leisure Centre 8 times per term.
- In the "Food We Eat" theme, Moorabool Shire Council (MSC), Darley Community Art Garden and Ballan Friendship Garden developed a local brochure on community gardens, their activities, and the health and environmental benefits of growing your own produce. The brochure is being distributed by the gardens and Council, to raise awareness of local food gardens, and to engage more volunteers, members and visitors.
- In the "Keeping Ourselves Safe" theme, WRISC Family Services and Council have collaborated on updating a hand sized Family Violence information booklet, to include The Orange Door, Elder abuse, CALD and LGBTQIA+ services. Cards have been distributed to the community through WRISC, internal MSC Teams with community facing services and programs, Emergency Management, libraries, community houses, Victoria Police, Child and Family Services (CAFS), Food Relief agencies, and community events.
- In the "Liveability" theme, a Detox Your Home event was held in partnership with Sustainability Victoria at the Ballan Transfer Station enabling residents to safely dispose of household chemicals at no cost. 57 people attended and 1,237 kg of household chemicals were dropped off for safe disposal. A free green waste drop off month in November 2022 was provided to allow clean-up of garden material in preparation for fire season. 1,128 residaccessed the service.
- In the "Mental Health" theme, Local Aboriginal Groups were consulted, and Aboriginal artists engaged to develop two art installations in Moorabool at Spargo Creek Mineral Springs, and Ballan Mineral Springs at Bostock. Wadawurrung artists consultancy Murri Yul

created artwork and interpretive information exploring traditional owner connections to mineral springs.

- Reconciliation Week was celebrated with a welcome to country smoking ceremony, flag raising ceremony and morning tea at the Village Green in Bacchus Marsh. Celebrations in Ballan included a welcome to country and smoking ceremony. Members of the Moorabool community joined together in celebrating and acknowledging the 2023 National NAIDOC Week. Eight events were held across Moorabool. IDAHOBIT day was acknowledged with a flag raising ceremony at the Ballan Council Offices.
- In the "Reducing Harmful Addictions" theme, Council was successful in obtaining a \$40,000 VicHealth Grant to fund an Alcohol Harm Prevention Officer for 12 months, to work with internal and external stakeholders including sports clubs, to audit sporting venues and to develop policy to reduce alcohol related harm at Council owned and managed facilities.

The following actions from year one of the 2021-2025 MHWP were rolled over and are now completed:

- Implement Health Choices policy for Council's Leisure Services.
- Develop a policy for sporting clubs to prevent consumption of alcohol at junior functions.
- Update guidelines for Council's community grants to exclude applications for clubs of organisations who receive alcohol or gambling venue sponsorship.

The following actions from Year Two were not started and are recommended to be carried forward to Year Three for action:

- Mental Health Training to support young people Due to reduced staffing capacity training was not delivered in 2023.
- Update landscaping guidelines to ensure streetscapes and private developments respond to climate issues more trees, appropriate species, and Water Sensitive Urban Design This action is awaiting the employment of a Coordinator to progress.

Review of Family Violence actions and measures

The eight actions relating to prevention of violence and in response to victims of family violence included as year two actions within the plan have been completed. Actions include gender equality measures, prevention campaigns and training, advocacy and promotion of victim support services. Full details are available within Attachment 1.

Health Profile

The data included in the health profile is considered relevant and current. Additional data received through the 2021 Census will be analysed and applied to the action plan where indicated.

PROPOSAL

It is proposed that Council adopt the report on the review of the second year of the Moorabool Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025, inclusive of the summary included as Attachment 1.

COUNCIL PLAN

The Council Plan 2021-2025 provides as follows:

Strategic Objective 1: Healthy, inclusive and connected neighbourhoods

Priority 1.1: Improve the health and wellbeing of our community

The proposal to adopt the Moorabool Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025 Year 2 review report is consistent with the Council Plan 2021-2025 requirement to implement the annual actions of the Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications from the recommendations proposed.

RISK & OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY ISSUES

Risk Identifier	Detail of Risk	Risk Rating	Control/s
Health and Wellbeing Plan	Council is required to review the Health and Wellbeing Plan annually under the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008	Medium	Council reviews the Health and Wellbeing Plan annually in accordance with the Act

COMMUNICATIONS & CONSULTATION STRATEGY

The following community engagement activities have been undertaken, in accordance with the Council's Community Engagement Policy and Framework:

Level of Engagement	Stakeholder	Activities	Location	Date	Outcome
Involve	Health and Wellbeing Committee	Review and workshop at meetings. Submissions on draft report	Various	7 August 2023 (meeting) September 2023	Committee members provided feedback on the status of actions.
Inform	State Government	Provide a copy of the Year Two report once adopted by Council	Not applicable	3 November 2023	State Government is informed of Council progress report.

VICTORIAN CHARTER OF HUMAN RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES ACT 2006

In developing this report to Council, the officer considered whether the subject matter raised any human rights issues. In particular, whether the scope of any human right established by the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities is in any way limited, restricted or interfered with by the recommendations contained in the report. It is considered that the subject matter does not raise any human rights issues.

OFFICER'S DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

Under section 130 of the *Local Government Act 2020*, officers providing advice to Council must disclose any interests, including the type of interest.

General Manager – Leigh McCallum

In providing this advice to Council as the General Manager, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

Author –Nichole Knight

In providing this advice to Council as the Author, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

CONCLUSION

Council has fulfilled the requirements stipulated in the Victorian Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008 to conduct an annual review of Health and Wellbeing Plan. The review of the Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025 has determined that of the 80 actions scheduled for completion in year two, 78 have been completed. Three actions rolled over for completion from year one have been completed. Two actions from year two are recommended to be carried forward for completion. It is recommended that Council adopt the annual review report of the second year of the Moorabool Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025.

12.3 AUGUST 2023 COMMUNITY GRANT RECOMMENDATIONS

Author:	Nichole	Knight,	Acting	Coordinator	Community	Development	and
	Engagem	ent					
Authoriser:	Leigh Mc	Callum, G	eneral N	lanager Comm	unity Strength	ening	

Attachments: 1. Attachment 1 - Community Grants August 2023 Round (under separate cover)

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to make recommendations to Council regarding funding applications for the August 2023 round of the Community Grants Program.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

- The Community Grants Program provides funding to community organisations to deliver projects that build on local strengths to develop healthy, inclusive and connected neighbourhoods.
- Council received 22 applications across the five program categories: Community Arts and Culture, Community Strengthening, Community Events, Community Development and Sustainability and Environmental Engagement.
- A combined value of \$146,159 was requested, with \$190,400 available this round.
- From 22 submitted applications, 20 were deemed eligible. The applications were assessed by a community grants assessment panel consisting of nine Council officers from a diverse range of departments.
- This report presents Council with a list of recommended grants for the August 2023 funding round prepared by the community grants assessment panel (Attachment 1- Community Grants August 2023 Round).
- 18 community groups applied for 20 eligible projects in total (two groups applied for two different projects each), with 17 groups recommended to receive \$141,751 in funding.
- The proposed allocation of this sum is detailed in the funding recommendations within this report and in Attachment 1- Community Grants August 2023 Round.

MOTION

Moved: Cr Tom Sullivan Seconded: Cr Paul Tatchell

That Council:

- 1. Notes the recent advice received from the Greendale Pub Social and Sporting Club Inc that they do not wish to proceed with their grant application for the Community Caravan project;
- 2. The Community Events Grant for the United Nations Youth Victoria of \$3000 be deleted; and
- **3.** Approves the allocation of community grants to the value of \$118,751 as outlined in Attachment 1 of this report.

In Favour:	Crs Tom Sullivan, Tonia Dudzik, Moira Berry, Paul Tatchell and Rod Wa	ird
<u>Against:</u>	Cr Ally Munari	
		CARRIED 5/1

BACKGROUND

This report provides an assessment of applications received for the Community Grants Program August 2023 Round. The grant round was opened 1 August and closed 31 August 2023, with 18 community groups submitting applications. A combined value of \$146,159 was requested, with \$190,400 available this round. Eligible applications were assessed by an assessment panel.

Council's Community Grants Program enables not for profit community groups to apply for funding to support projects that result in broad community benefit for the Moorabool community. An annual allocation of \$270,400 is available in 2023/2024 with \$190,400 available this round. The grants program has the following five program categories:

- **Community Arts and Culture Grants:** Supporting local artists and organisations to use a creative approach to the development of community projects and initiatives (\$10,000 available this round).
- **Community Strengthening Grants:** Community projects, programs and initiatives with a specific focus on connecting communities and building community capacity (\$60,000 available this round).
- **Community Events Grants:** Non-recurrent, seed funding designed to encourage and promote the development of sustainable local events (\$10,000 available this round).
- **Community Development Fund Grants:** Supporting community infrastructure projects which significantly impact on community development (\$100,000 available this round).
- **Sustainability and Environmental Engagement Grants:** Supporting the community in reducing expenditure of gas and electricity, investing in sustainability measures and providing opportunities to raise awareness of environmental issues to the broader community (\$10,400 available this round).

Community groups and organisations can apply for up to \$5,000 for Community Strengthening Grants and up to \$3,000 for Arts, Events and Sustainability Grants. Groups need to demonstrate a cash or in-kind contribution toward the cost of their project on a ratio of \$1 for \$1 (Council \$1: Group \$1). Small Community Strengthening projects under \$1,000 are not required to demonstrate an applicant contribution.

A Grant Assessment Panel of Council officers assessed the applications against a set of criteria. Applications need to achieve a score of 70 or above to be recommended by the assessment panel to receive funding, subject to Council's endorsement.

The assessment criteria are as follows:

- Project description and why the applicant wants to complete the project 10%
- Why is the project needed in your community? 20%
- What will this project achieve? 20%
- Who will be involved in the project? 15%
- How will you carry out your project (including risk management)? 15%
- Project budget and explanation of how the group arrived at the costs 20%

Each criterion is assessed out of 10 and weighted according to the criteria percentage. The maximum possible score of any application is 100. The scoring guide is as follows:

- 0 Did not address criteria
- 1-2 Minimal
- 3-5 Satisfactory
- 6-8 Good
- 9-10 Excellent

PROPOSAL

August 2023 Community Grant Recommendations

In total, 20 eligible applications were received across the five program categories as follows:

- Community Arts and Culture Grants (2)
- Community Strengthening Grants (12)
- Community Events Grants (1)
- Community Development Grants (3)
- Sustainability and Environmental Engagement Grant (2)

All 20 submitted applications were individually assessed by a panel of Council officers prior to a Grant Assessment Panel meeting. A total of \$144,752 was requested with \$190,400 available this round. The assessment panel recommends a total value of \$141,751 to be awarded to 17 applicants. It is recommended that the Community Development Fund requested amount is provided in full. Whilst this is a small overspend of \$268 in this category, overall, the spend across other categories is below the amount available. This community grant funding will contribute to local projects worth \$353,788 in total.

Category	Applications Received	Amount Available	Amount Requested	Amount Recommended	Application s Recommen ded
Community Arts and Culture Grants	2	\$10,000.00	\$6,000.00	\$6,000.00	2
Community Strengthening Grants	12	\$60,000.00	\$33,041.00	\$31,633	11
Community Events Grants	1	\$10,000.00	\$3,000.00	\$3,000.00	1
Community Development Fund Grants	3	\$100,000	\$100,268.00	\$100,268.00	3
Sustainability and Environmental Engagement Grants	2	\$10,400.00	\$3,850.00	\$850.00	1
Total	20	\$190,400	\$146,159	\$141,751	18

The recommendation provided in Attachment 1 – Community Grants August 2023 Round recommendations represents all the community grant applications from the August 2023 grant round.

Applicant Support

The Community Grant Guidelines specify that applicants are required to liaise with a Community Development Officer prior to lodging an application to ensure applicants receive clear guidance on eligibility and how to best present their applications. All applicants received support and advice from Council officers before lodging their application. Additional support was provided after the funding round closed to clarify any ambiguity in applications.

COUNCIL PLAN

The Council Plan 2021-2025 provides as follows:

Strategic Objective 1: Healthy, inclusive and connected neighbourhoods

Priority 1.1: Improve the health and wellbeing of our community

The proposed allocation of grants under the August 2023 round of the Community Grants Program is consistent with the Council Plan 2021-2025.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Consistent with the Community Grants Policy and 2023/2024 budget allocation, a total of \$190,400 is available for allocation in the August 2023 Community Grants Program.

The following amounts are recommended:

- \$6,000 for Community Arts and Culture Grants
- \$31,633 for Community Strengthening Grants

- \$3,000 for Community Events Grants
- \$100,268 for Community Development Fund Grants
- \$850 for Sustainability and Environmental Engagement Grants

An allocation of \$141,751 is recommended, and \$9,550 remaining from the Sustainability and Environmental Engagement stream available to be rolled over to the March 2024 community grant round.

RISK & OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY ISSUES

Risk Identifier	Detail of Risk	Risk Rating	Control/s
Project timelines	Grant recipients exceeding prescribed timelines.	Medium	Terms and conditions agreements required to be signed by grant recipients. Scheduled monitoring of projects.
Financial – Inadequate funds to finish project	Grant recipients misappropriate expenditure of Council funds.	Medium	Terms and conditions agreements required to be signed by grant recipients. Grant acquittal required upon completion of projects.

COMMUNICATIONS & CONSULTATION STRATEGY

Level of Engagement	Stakeholder	Activities	Location	Date	Outcome
Inform	Community Groups	Advised of Community Grants opening and encouraged to apply.	Via direct email	July/August 2023	Community Groups are aware of the grant opportunities and can put forward a submission.
Inform	Moorabool residents	Promotional flyers at libraries, community centres, and noticeboards Libraries, Arts and Culture E-News Council website Facebook Moorabool News	Across the shire	July/August 2023	Council's Community Grants Program is well promoted to the Moorabool community.

Level of Engagement	Stakeholder	Activities	Location	Date	Outcome
		Township Entrance Banners			
Inform	Moorabool residents	Grant Writing Workshops and Drop-in sessions.	Online and in person	August 2023	The community can learn about the Community Grants Program and develop their applications.
Inform	Successful applicants	Letter of formal notification.	Via email	November 2023	Following a decision of Council, successful grant applicants are notified.
Inform	Unsuccessful applicants	Letter of formal notification. Advised of future grant writing workshops. Provided an opportunity to meet with staff.	Via email	November 2023	Unsuccessful grant applicants are notified and provided feedback on their application. Applicants will be supported where applicable to redevelop their application for a following round.

VICTORIAN CHARTER OF HUMAN RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES ACT 2006

In developing this report to Council, the officer considered whether the subject matter raised any human rights issues. In particular, whether the scope of any human right established by the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities is in any way limited, restricted or interfered with by the recommendations contained in the report. It is considered that the subject matter does not raise any human rights issues.

OFFICER'S DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

Under section 130 of the *Local Government Act 2020*, officers providing advice to Council must disclose any interests, including the type of interest.

General Manager – Leigh McCallum

In providing this advice to Council as the General Manager, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

Author – Nichole Knight

In providing this advice to Council as the Author, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

CONCLUSION

The August 2023 community grants round resulted in 22 applications. 20 applications were deemed eligible and assessed by an assessment panel. Based on the application assessment process and funding criteria, it is proposed that Council allocates funding to the value of \$141,751 to be distributed to 17 organisations through the Moorabool Shire August 2023 Community Grant Program per the recommendations provided in Attachment 1.

13 COMMUNITY ASSETS & INFRASTRUCTURE REPORTS

13.1 BACCHUS MARSH AVENUE OF HONOUR MANAGEMENT STRATEGY & PRESERVATION PLAN

Author:	Lace	Daniel, Acting Manager Operations
Authoriser:	Phil	Jeffrey, General Manager Community Assets & Infrastructure
Attachments:	1.	Draft Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Honour Management Strategy (under separate cover)

2. Draft Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Honour Preservation Plan (under separate cover)

PURPOSE

Following a community engagement process, the purpose of this report is to present the final draft Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Honour Management Strategy and Preservation Plan to Council for formal adoption.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

- The Bacchus Marsh Avenue (the Avenue) is an important community asset with historical, aesthetic and scientific significance, and is managed and maintained by Moorabool Shire.
- Many of the original trees along the Avenue are over 100 years old, and as such ageing, and are less tolerant of changes in the environment and have structural defects present.
- The draft Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Honour Management Strategy (the Strategy) and Preservation Plan (the Plan) has been developed to ensure the Avenue is effectively managed, conserved and enhanced as a living memorial, commemorating the soldiers of the Bacchus Marsh district.
- The draft documents outline the history of the Avenue, principles for its management, and Council's proposed methodology in strategically replacing the existing trees over time to ensure that the Avenue is preserved for future generations.
- Following in principle endorsement by Council, a public consultation period and range of engagement activities was undertaken over a 28-day period, and it is now recommended that the draft Strategy and Plan be adopted by Council.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Tonia Dudzik Seconded: Cr Tom Sullivan

That Council:

- 1. Adopts the Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Honour Management Strategy and Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Honour Preservation Plan; and
- 2. Requests that copies of the adopted documents are uploaded to Council's website and the relevant stakeholders are advised as outlined in the Communications Strategy within this report.

CARRIED

BACKGROUND

The Bacchus Marsh Avenue extends approximately 3.3km along Bacchus Marsh Road, between Fisken Street and the Lerderderg River.

The Avenue is largely dominated by Dutch Elms and comprises three distinct sections:

- The Western Approach: between Fisken Street and Pearce Street, this approach is made up of 40 sites, originally planted circa 1880s.
- The dedicated Avenue of Honour: between Pearce Street and the flag poles (approximately 300m prior to the Lerderderg River), this section is made up of 281 sites, originally planted in 1918. Within this section on each tree is a plaque in recognition of a soldier from the Bacchus Marsh district. The Avenue of Honour is listed on the Victorian Heritage Register.
- The Eastern Approach: between the flag poles and the Lerderderg River, this approach is made up of 39 sites, originally planted circa 1960s.

The Avenue is an iconic part of the Bacchus Marsh landscape and is of historical, aesthetic and scientific significance at a state level.

Whilst Bacchus Marsh Road is a Department of Transport managed road, management of the avenue trees is assumed by Moorabool Shire. This includes ongoing inspections, significant and specialist maintenance, emergency response, removal and replacement plantings.

The ongoing management of this important heritage listed landscape is complex and requires considered planning to ensure the preservation of the Avenue for future generations.

The draft Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Honour Management Strategy and Preservation Plan has been developed to replace the existing Avenue of Honour Management Plan (2004) to ensure that the Avenue is effectively managed, conserved and enhanced as a living memorial, commemorating the soldiers of the Bacchus Marsh district. The review of the current plan is also an action contained within the current Council Plan 2021-25.

The Strategy outlines the history and management principles for the Avenue, and the Preservation Plan provides the operational information in relation to trees, sites and the forward replacement program.

Management of the Avenue

The Useful Life Expectancy (ULE) of a tree is an estimation of how long it can be safely retained and provide a positive contribution to the landscape. The regular and significant arboriculture management from Moorabool Shire Council over the last decade has reduced the associated risk, however an increasing number of trees have an ULE of less than 20 years, which is considerable in terms of tree replacement within this landscape in the short to medium term.

The original trees are over 100 years in age, and some are becoming senescent, less able to cope with changes to their environment or environmental stresses. The short ULE of these trees reflects their age and the presence of structural defects.

A detailed arboricultural assessment of the trees was undertaken to inform the draft Preservation Plan, which outlines Council's proposed methodology in strategically replacing the existing trees over time to ensure that the Avenue is preserved for future generations. The assessments considered various issues that may affect the avenue including health, risk and aesthetics, focussing on the integrity of the Avenue, the health and longevity of the trees, future climate predictions, the critical connection between the trees and individual service persons, infrastructure and development conflicts and ongoing maintenance regimes.

The program will allow this transition to the next generation of trees to continue in a strategic and systematic fashion.

Community Engagement

Given the local, State and wider significance of the Avenue, a number of stakeholders were identified and directly engaged during the development of the draft documents as well as the 28day community engagement period, following endorsement by Council at the August Ordinary Meeting of Council.

These stakeholders included Heritage Victoria, the Bacchus Marsh RSL Sub-Branch, Moorabool Heritage Advisory Committee (including the Bacchus Marsh Historical Society) and expert consultants in arboriculture and heritage.

During the engagement period, the following activities were undertaken and were well received by the community and stakeholders:

- Four community drop-in sessions (morning, afternoon and evening) at the Lerderderg Library. Community members that attended these sessions were able to view the plans, further information on the Avenue of Honour and ask questions of Council officers and expert consulting arborists. Attendance was generally low (approximately 30), however the sessions were well received by those that participated.
- Face to face presentations and discussion with the Bacchus Marsh RSL and Moorabool Heritage Advisory Committee.
- Print promotions including a letterbox drop to avenue landowners, posters and advertising in the local newspaper.
- Online promotions including Council website and boosted social media posts. The reach of these promotions was significant, however minimal relevant comments or questions were posted as a result.

Further discussions are also currently in progress with Heritage Victoria to obtain their endorsement of the plans and provide pre-approval for the tree replacements proposed from years 0 to 10 in order to streamline the implementation process.

During the engagement period the draft documents were made publicly available (online via Council's Have Your Say portal and in hard copy) to allow the community the opportunity to review and provide submissions. Although visits to the online platform were significant, no formal submissions were received.

Document Updates

Following the above, and a further internal review of the documents, the following amendments have been made from the initial draft version:

- Removal of the Resting Poppy project due to this no longer being pursued.
- Update of the references to the Department of Transport Eastern Link Road Planning Study, following the announcement of the preferred alignment.
- Updates to the action plan to include priorities and responsibilities etc.
- Minor grammatical and formatting updates.
- Moving of one tree (dedicated avenue) from years 0 to 2.5, to years 5 to 10, following a request from the family at a community drop-in session, and assessment of tree health.

PROPOSAL

Following input from a range of stakeholders and subject matter experts, and significant engagement with the community, it is now recommended that the draft Strategy and Plan be formally adopted.

COUNCIL PLAN

The Council Plan 2021-2025 provides as follows:

Strategic Objective 2: Liveable and thriving environments

Priority 2.2: Beautify our Shire including our parks, gardens, streetscapes, public and open spaces

The proposal is consistent with the Council Plan 2021-2025.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Management and maintenance of the Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Honour is funded by Council as part of its annual operational budget. There are no additional financial implications associated with the recommendation within this report.

Risk Identifier	Detail of Risk	Risk Rating	Control/s
Injury, damage and liability/financial	Risk of a tree/limb falling on a person or property due to poor health	High	An adopted strategic management plan in place, and adequate and regular maintenance of the Avenue trees undertaken in accordance with the plan

RISK & OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY ISSUES

Reputational	Risk to the perception of Council if trees are perceived to be mismanaged or an incident occurs due to declining health without action	Medium	An adopted strategic management plan in place, and adequate and regular maintenance of the Avenue trees undertaken in accordance with the plan
Injury	Risk of injury to staff when performing inspection or maintenance works on trees and in close proximity to traffic	Medium	Utilisation of contractors with specialist skills, experience and equipment to undertake inspections and maintenance. Ensuring that the appropriate plans and processes are in place in relation to safety, traffic management etc.

COMMUNICATIONS & CONSULTATION STRATEGY

Level of Engagement	Stakeholder	Activities	Location	Date	Outcome
Inform	Key stakeholders and wider community	Documents loaded onto Council's website Drop-in session attendees directly notified of the outcome Key stakeholders (Bacchus Marsh RSL, Heritage Advisory Committee etc) directly notified of the outcome	Online	November 2023	Key stakeholders advised of the outcome and adopted documents publicly available

VICTORIAN CHARTER OF HUMAN RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES ACT 2006

In developing this report to Council, the officer considered whether the subject matter raised any human rights issues. In particular, whether the scope of any human right established by the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities is in any way limited, restricted or interfered with by the recommendations contained in the report. It is considered that the subject matter does not raise any human rights issues.

OFFICER'S DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

Under section 130 of the *Local Government Act 2020*, officers providing advice to Council must disclose any interests, including the type of interest.

General Manager – Phil Jeffrey

In providing this advice to Council as the General Manager, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

Author – Lace Daniel

In providing this advice to Council as the Author, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

CONCLUSION

Following the community engagement period, it is now recommended that Council adopt the Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Honour Management Strategy and Preservation Plan.

13.2 MOORABOOL ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE - DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE

- Author: Caroline Rantall, Coordinator Sustainable Environment
- Authoriser: Phil Jeffrey, General Manager Community Assets & Infrastructure
- Attachments: 1. Community Consultation Feedback MESAC (under separate cover)
 - 2. Draft Terms of Reference MESAC (under separate cover)

PURPOSE

To seek support for an update to the Terms of Reference for the Moorabool Environment and Sustainability Advisory Committee (MESAC), and to retain the current members and align the appointment of new committee members with the commencement of the Council term in 2024.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

- The Moorabool Environment and Sustainability Advisory Committee was established in 1998 and was formerly titled the Moorabool Landcare Advisory Committee.
- The Committee was renamed Moorabool Environment and Sustainability Advisory Committee in 2019 following the adoption of the Sustainable Environment Strategy.
- A review found that the current Terms of Reference is outdated, specifically role and function, governance, membership and consistency.
- A new Terms of Reference has been drafted which addresses issues identified in the review.
- The draft Terms of Reference was released for community consultation for a period of four weeks in June/July 2023.
- A revised draft Terms of Reference was created incorporating community feedback.
- Following adoption of the new Terms of Reference the current members will be retained and the appointment of new members to align with the commencement of the Council term in 2024.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Moira Berry Seconded: Cr Ally Munari

That Council:

- **1.** Adopts the new Moorabool Environment and Sustainability Advisory Committee Terms of Reference as per Attachment **2**.
- 2. Resolves to retain the current members and align the appointment of new members with the commencement of the Council term in 2024.

CARRIED

BACKGROUND

The Moorabool Environment and Sustainability Advisory Committee comprises members of the community with land care experience or an interest in environment and sustainability to advise Council on matters of land care policy, planning and development relating to Environment and Sustainability.

The Committee formed in 1998 and was formerly titled the Moorabool Landcare Advisory Committee (MLAC). Meetings were held monthly, and an Annual General Meeting was conducted each April. The original Terms of Reference for the Committee was reviewed and adopted in May 2002.

The Moorabool Sustainable Environment Strategy was adopted by Council in April 2017. This strategy established a broader policy and operational scope for Council, and it was resolved on 13 November 2019 that the former Moorabool Landcare Advisory Committee be renamed to Moorabool Environment and Sustainability Advisory Committee (MESAC). It was seen that this name better reflects the range of matters being considered by the Committee.

The responsibility for the Committee was transferred to the Environment and Waste team in 2020 following an internal restructure within the organisation.

Terms of Reference Review

Discussions held with the existing members of the MESAC group have identified that the Terms of Reference is outdated and needs to be reviewed. Identified issues include:

<u>Governance</u>

Meetings are not conducted as per correct meeting guidelines, and minutes of meetings are not tabled at Council meetings.

Role and function

Inconsistency with the role and function of an Advisory Committee, with the Committee having little clarity on what Council require from the group and what their role is.

<u>Membership</u>

Representatives from 21 groups can be appointed to the Committee, there is no current list of active representatives and many of the groups and agencies no longer exist, are inactive and do not attend Committee meetings.

The current members who attend are representatives of local environment groups such as the Moorabool Landcare Network, Moorabool Environment Group, Friends of Groups and the Bacchus Marsh Platypus Alliance.

<u>Consistency</u>

Current Terms of Reference is on an outdated template and missing components relating to Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality, Quorum, Membership and Resignation of Members.

Committee Consultation

Current Committee members are aware that a review of the Terms of Reference is being undertaken and a presentation was delivered to the Committee at the MESAC meeting held on Monday 20 February 2023.

This presentation included an outline of the new Terms of Reference template and the items within the template that can be adapted to the Committee, and an outline of clauses and sections that were not present in the current Terms of Reference document.

Within the presentation it was communicated to the group that the intent of the Advisory Committee is to provide recommendations, input and advice to Council.

At the June MESAC meeting Council officers presented the draft Terms of Reference to the current committee and sought feedback.

On 7 June 2023 the draft Terms of Reference was presented to Council who resolved that the Terms of Reference be placed on community consultation for a period of four weeks.

The Terms of Reference was placed on Council's Have your Say platform on 22 June 2023 for four weeks closing on 27 July 2023.

Within the consultation period there was 140 page views with the document downloaded 53 times. A total of five submissions were made, with four received via Have your Say and one received via email.

A consultation table has been created listing the feedback received, officer response and action taken (Attachment 1).

A further consultation session was held with the existing committee members on 4 September 2023 to present the feedback received and the revised draft Terms of Reference.

PROPOSAL

A new Terms of Reference has been drafted (Attachment 2). Key changes to the Terms of Reference include:

- Use of consistent Terms of Reference template.
- Term of appointment changed from 12 months to 4 years (with a review after 2 years) to align with the duration of the Council term.
- Purpose and objectives adapted to ensure the Committee can provide input and advice on matters relating to conservation, biodiversity, environment, pest and weed programs on Council owned and managed land and roadsides, waste and circular economy, water quality, sustainability and related matters within the municipality as referred by Council.
- The purpose was further refined following community consultation.
- Membership changes reducing membership from 25 members to ten members. The reduction in representation is to ensure a more manageable Committee size and is based on past attendance by committee members. Following consultation, the number of members was increased from eight to ten to ensure there can be a diverse range of members appointed.
- The Terms of Reference also allows non-voting representatives from relevant Government agencies such as water authorities, EPA, Department of Energy, Environment and Climate Action to be invited to speak to relevant topics.
- Selection process will change to the Appointment to Committee process outlined within the new Terms of Reference.
- Tabling of Committee minutes at Council meetings, including member reports that have been submitted to Council.

Due to the Council term ceasing in 2024, Council will retain the current members and will release an expression of interest in the later part of 2024 to align with the start of the new Council term.

COUNCIL PLAN

The Council Plan 2021-2025 provides as follows:

Strategic Objective 3: A Council that listens and adapts to the needs of our evolving communities

Priority 3.1: Listen, analyse and understand community needs

The proposal to update the Terms of Reference for the Moorabool Environment and Sustainability Advisory Committee to ensure effective governance is consistent with the Council Plan 2021-2025.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications associated with this report. The appointment of a new Committee can be accommodated within the 2023/2024 budget.

RISK & OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY ISSUES

Risk Identifier	Detail of Risk	Risk Rating	Control/s
Not representative of the community	There is no current list of active representatives and many of the groups and agencies no longer exist, are inactive and do not attend Committee meetings	Medium	Update Terms of Reference and appoint new members under the process outlined within.

COMMUNICATIONS & CONSULTATION STRATEGY

Level of Engagement	Stakeholder	Activities	Location	Date	Outcome
Consult	Current MESAC members	Outline that a review is being undertaken and present new template to the Committee members	Online MESAC meeting	20 February 2023	Current members aware update of Terms of Reference is being undertaken.
Consult	Community	Draft Terms of Reference released for comment	Online Have your Say	22 June 2023 – 27 July 2023	Feedback reviewed and incorporated into draft Terms of Reference.

ConsultCurrent MESAC membersPresentation of draft Terms of Reference	Online MESAC meeting	4 September 2023	Feedback reviewed and incorporated into draft Terms of Reference.
--	----------------------------	------------------------	---

VICTORIAN CHARTER OF HUMAN RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES ACT 2006

In developing this report to Council, the officer considered whether the subject matter raised any human rights issues. In particular, whether the scope of any human right established by the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities is in any way limited, restricted or interfered with by the recommendations contained in the report. It is considered that the subject matter does not raise any human rights issues.

OFFICER'S DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

Under section 130 of the *Local Government Act 2020*, officers providing advice to Council must disclose any interests, including the type of interest.

General Manager – Phil Jeffrey

In providing this advice to Council as the General Manager, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

Author – Caroline Rantall

In providing this advice to Council as the Author, I have no interests to disclose in this report.

CONCLUSION

The existing MESAC Advisory Committee Terms of Reference is outdated. A review found that elements of the Terms of Reference, in particular the role and function, governance and membership sections require updating.

A new Terms of Reference has been drafted which addresses issues identified in the review.

Community consultation was undertaken with the draft Terms of Reference released on Councils Have your Say portal for a period of four weeks in June/July. Feedback has been incorporated into the draft Terms of Reference.

Following adoption of the new Terms of Reference the current members will be retained, with a process to seek and appoint new members to the Committee in the later part of 2024 to align with the new Council term.

14 OTHER REPORTS

Nil

- 15 NOTICES OF MOTION
- Nil
- 16 NOTICES OF RESCISSION

Nil

17 MAYOR'S REPORT

- 17.1 MAYOR'S REPORT
- Author: Dianne Elshaug, Co-ordinator CEOs Office
- Authoriser: Derek Madden, Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: Nil

PURPOSE

To provide details to the community on the meetings and events attended by the Mayor since the last Ordinary Meeting of Council.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

That the Mayor's Report be tabled for consideration at the Ordinary Meeting of Council.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Tom Sullivan Seconded: Cr Moira Berry

That Council receives the Mayor's Report.

Cr Rod Ward -	- Mayor's Report
Date: 1 Noven	nber 2023
6 October	MooraPOOL Community Advocacy Group Meeting
7 October	Australian Citizenship Ceremony, Mechanics Institute, Ballan
11 October	 Councillor Briefings – August 2023 Community Grants Recommendations; Confidential Report; Draft ToR: Moorabool Environment & Sustainability Advisory Committee; West Moorabool Heritage Study & Associated Planning Scheme Amendment (Briefing 3); Review of the DAC Agenda; General Business; Councillor Only Session
14 October	 Official Opening – Bacchus Marsh Little Athletics Season Opening (with Michaela Settle and Steve McGhie) Official Opening – Darley Sports and Community Hub
15 October	Bacchus Marsh Rodders Dave Calleja Memorial Car Show, Maddingley Park
16 October	Bacchus Marsh Probus Club Quiz Show and Lunch (Seniors Week)

18 October	 Heritage Advisory Committee Meeting, Lerderderg Library Councillor Briefings – Crown Land Reserve Peppercorn Lease: Bacchus Marsh Montessori Kindergarten at 176 Gisborne Road, Darley; Annual Review and Update of the Governance Rules; Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025 Year 2 Review; Directorate Update: Community Strengthening; Review of the OMC Agenda; General Business Development Assessment Committee
19 October	CWA Bacchus Marsh Devonshire Morning Tea, Bacchus Marsh Public Hall (Seniors Week)
20 October	 Official Opening – Royal Geelong Agricultural & Pastoral Society Official Opening – Ballan Recreation Reserve Pavilion
21 October	Official Opening – Oktoberfest, Kryal Castle
23 October	BMAM Meeting
24 October	MooraPOOL Community Advocacy Group Meeting
25 October	 Councillor Briefings – Adoption of CCTV Policy; Community Grants Program Review; Municipal Emergency Management Plan; Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Honour Management Strategy & Preservation Plan; Directorate Update: Community Assets & Infrastructure; General Business Special Meeting of Council
26 October	Opening if the Binak Biik Sculpture at Telford Park, Darley
27 October	MooraPOOL Community Advocacy Group Meeting
30 November	 Visit by St Brigids Primary School re governance talk Shire Tour with Councillors
1 November	 Councillor Briefings – Review of the DAC Agenda; General Business Ordinary Meeting of Council
any residents at thanked them for	ended the Bacchus Marsh Lions Club who are offering free skin cancer checks for the Village Green, Main Street, Bacchus Marsh on 25 and 26 November 2023, and or their recent media release and educational material raising awareness of the cancer for our community.

18 COUNCILLORS' REPORTS

Cr Tom Sullivan	
13 October	MAV State Council Meeting in Melbourne
	Cr Sullivan noted that this was the first meeting of MAV where each Council had one vote. The previous voting system where larger Councils had 2 votes and the rest had 1 vote has been abolished. The voting system is more fair and egaltarian and there is noticibly less frivolous motions being put to these meetings. It appears MAV are getting back to the "bread and butter" matters of local Council with a higher level of strategic focus for local government across the state. It is hoped this will continue as MAV and local Councils will be better for it.
19 October	Timber Towns meeting on Zoom
24 October	 Presented on behalf of Timber Towns president Cr Curran Stevens to the Gippsland Forestry Hub regarding the timber industry road evaluation study Elaine Mechanics Hall AGM

Cr Ally Munari	
7 October	Australian Citizenship Ceremony, Mechanics Institute, Ballan
15 October	Launch – CEMAP and Flipchart, Community Emergency Preparedness Expo
19 October	Greendale Recreation Reserves Community Asset Committee AGM
20 October	Official Opening – Ballan Recreation Reserve Pavilion
24 October	Public Art and Collections Advisory Committee meeting
26 October	Opening of the Binak Biik Sculpture at Telford Park, Darley

Cr Paul Tatchell	
11 October	Gordon Public Hall Community Asset Committee AGM
	d concerns regarding Moorabool's aging population and the challenge in recruiting eers to run community groups across the shire.

Cr Moira Berry	
6 Oct	Peri Urban Councils Victoria
	Feedback from Vic Planning Authority on PCV priorities
7 October	Australian Citizenship Ceremony, Mechanics Institute, Ballan
11 October	Government House Awards
14 October	Official Opening – Bacchus Marsh Little Athletics Season Opening (with Michaela Settle and Steve McGhie)
	Official Opening – Darley Sports and Community Hub
15 October	Bacchus Marsh Rodders Car Show, Maddingley Park
18 October	Online meeting with PCV and the Hon. Melissa Horne MP to discuss challenges of peri-urban councils including transport, rail freight priorities and governance issues
19 October	CWA Bacchus Marsh Devonshire Morning Tea, Bacchus Marsh Public Hall (Seniors Week)
	Rock It Out Seniors Event, Bacchus Marsh Public Hall
	Cr Berry thanked Council staff, Bacchus Marsh Communmity Radio (Apple FM) for providing the music and to the CWA Bacchus Marsh Branch for providing the Devonshire Morning tea.
20 October	Official Opening – Ballan Recreation Reserve Pavilion
23 October	• Attended as a Guest Speaker at Probus Bacchus Marsh meeting and spoke on life before and after being a Councillor
26 October	Opening if the Binak Biik Sculpture at Telford Park, Darley
	Cr Berry commended Council staff and sculpture artists who created sculptures for the whole community to enjoy. It was great to see community memebers attending and participating in the smoking ceremony.
28 October	Grow West 20 year celebration – Myrniong
29 October	Bacchus Marsh Rotary Club, Flower and Garden Show
	Cr Berry commended the Bacchus Marsh Rotary Club for putting on this event, and Nikki Davey, the co-founder of Grown not Flown, who had a stall at the show with a presentation of Australian natives
30 October	Shire Tour with Councillors

Cr Tonia Dudzik	
14 October	Official Opening – Darley Sports and Community Hub

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Tom Sullivan Seconded: Cr Ally Munari

RESOLUTION

That Council receive the Councillors' Reports.

CARRIED

19 URGENT BUSINESS

Cr Sullivan rasied 4 items of urgent business in relation to:

- That a thorough Review of the Rating Strategy for Moorabool Shire well in advance of the 2024-25 budget be undertaken and that Council commences the review as soon as possible with all potential options being considered.
- 2. That Council contacts all owners of vacant industrial zoned land throughout Moorabool Shire with the view to have a collective meeting/gathering hosted by Council to determine what are the impediments of unlocking development potential of their land.
- 3. Illegal earthworks in Wiggins Road, Scotsburn.
- 4. Cr Sullivan also raised a question in relation to the petition to rename the Elaine Recreation Reserve to the Ron Reed Recreation Reserve.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Paul Tatchell Seconded: Cr Ally Munari

That Council resolves to admit the items of urgent business relating to:

- 1. That a thorough Review of the Rating Strategy for Moorabool Shire well in advance of the 2024-25 budget be undertaken and that Council commences the review as soon as possible with all potential options being considered.
- 2. That Council contacts all owners of vacant industrial zoned land throughout Moorabool Shire with the view to have a collective meeting/gathering hosted by Council to determine what are the impediments in unlocking development potential of their land.
- 3. Illegal earthworks in Wiggins Road, Scotsburn.

CARRIED

19.1 REVIEW OF THE RATING STRATEGY

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Tom Sullivan Seconded: Cr Ally Munari

That a thorough review of the Rating Strategy for Moorabool Shire well in advance of the 2024-25 budget be undertaken and that Council commences the review as soon as possible with all potential options being considered.

CARRIED

19.2 DETERMINING THE IMPEDIMENTS TO UNLOCKING DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL OF VACANT INDUSTRIAL LAND

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Tom Sullivan Seconded: Cr Paul Tatchell

That Council contact all owners of vacant industrial zoned land throughout Moorabool Shire with the view to have a collective meeting/gathering hosted by Council to determine what are the impediments in unlocking development potential of their land.

CARRIED

19.3 ILLEGAL EARTHWORKS IN WIGGINS ROAD, SCOTSBURN

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Tom Sullivan Seconded: Cr Tonia Dudzik

That Council follow up the matter of illegal earthworks in Wiggins Road, Scotsburn with some urgency with regards to the non-compliance to the Stop Work Notices that Council has issued.

CARRIED

Celeste Gregory responded to Cr Sullivan's question regarding the petition to rename the Elaine Recreation Reserve.

The renaming of the Elaine Recreation Reserve is on hold until the adoption of the Place Naming Policy which is currently out for community consultation.

Cr Tatchell raised one item of urgent business regarding the Water Authorities rejecting planning applications for dwellings on lots less than 40 hectares in subdivisions within the water catchment areas due to their position on Council's domestic waste management program.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Moira Berry Seconded: Cr Ally Munari

That Council resolves to admit the item of urgent business relating to Water Authorities rejecting planning applications for dwellings on lots less than 40 hectares and subdivisions creating lots less than 40 hectares within the water catchment areas due to their position on Council's domestic waste management program.

CARRIED

19.4 REJECTION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS ON LOTS LESS THAN 40 HECTARES IN WATER CATCHMENT AREAS BY WATER AUTHORITIES

Water Authorities have been objecting to planning applications for dwellings on lots less than 40 hectares and subdivisions creating lots less than 40 hectares within the water catchment areas due to their position on Council's Domestic Waste Management program.

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Paul Tatchell Seconded: Cr Tom Sullivan

That the CEO contact the water authorities with the view to reconsider their position on planning applications with regards to guideline 1 and category 4 exemption under the Ministerial Guidelines issued by the Department of Sustainability and Environment.

CARRIED

20 CLOSED SESSION OF THE MEETING TO THE PUBLIC

RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Ally Munari Seconded: Cr Moira Berry

That Council considers the confidential report(s) listed below in a meeting closed to the public in accordance with Section 66(2)(a) of the *Local Government Act 2020*:

20.1 C03-2023/2024 - Hogan Road and Densley Street, Ballan - Upgrade

This matter is considered to be confidential under Section 3(1) confidential information - (g) of the Local Government Act, and the Council is satisfied that discussion of this matter in an open meeting would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest as it deals with private commercial information, being information provided by a business, commercial or financial undertaking that (i) relates to trade secrets; or

(ii) if released, would unreasonably expose the business, commercial or financial undertaking to disadvantage.

20.2 C06 2023/2024 Mill Park Splash Park and Amenities Design & Construct Contract

This matter is considered to be confidential under Section 3(1) confidential information - (g) of the Local Government Act, and the Council is satisfied that discussion of this matter in an open meeting would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest as it deals with private commercial information, being information provided by a business, commercial or financial undertaking that (i) relates to trade secrets; or

(ii) if released, would unreasonably expose the business, commercial or financial undertaking to disadvantage.

20.3 C14 2023/2024 Dunnstown Pavilion and Navigators Community Hub

This matter is considered to be confidential under Section 3(1) confidential information - (g) of the Local Government Act, and the Council is satisfied that discussion of this matter in an open meeting would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest as it deals with private commercial information, being information provided by a business, commercial or financial undertaking that (i) relates to trade secrets; or

(ii) if released, would unreasonably expose the business, commercial or financial undertaking to disadvantage.

20.4 Procurement Australia Contract 2403/0109; Bulk Fuels

This matter is considered to be confidential under Section 3(1) confidential information - (g) of the Local Government Act, and the Council is satisfied that discussion of this matter in an open meeting would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest as it deals with private commercial information, being information provided by a business, commercial or financial undertaking that (i) relates to trade secrets; or

(ii) if released, would unreasonably expose the business, commercial or financial undertaking to disadvantage.

20.5 Contract C11-2022/23; Supply of Emulsion & Bituminous Products

This matter is considered to be confidential under Section 3(1) - g(ii) of the Local Government Act, and the Council is satisfied that discussion of this matter in an open meeting would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest as it deals with private commercial information, being information provided by a business, commercial or financial undertaking that if released, would unreasonably expose the business, commercial or financial undertaking to disadvantage.

20.6 Confidential Bacchus Marsh Bowls Club Facility

This matter is considered to be confidential under Section 3(1) - g(ii) of the Local Government Act, and the Council is satisfied that discussion of this matter in an open meeting would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest as it deals with private commercial information, being information provided by a business, commercial or financial undertaking that if released, would unreasonably expose the business, commercial or financial undertaking to disadvantage.

21 MEETING CLOSURE

The Meeting closed at 7.58pm.

••••••

CHAIRPERSON